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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2815

The trustees who are also directors of the academy trust for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their
report with the linanciul statements of the academy trust for the yeer ended 31 August 2015, The trustees have adopted

. the provisions of the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ issued in
March 2005 and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education Funding Agency.

STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Governing docunient

The academy trust was incorporated en 9 January 2012 ¢s a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity, The
charitable company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the academy

trust,

Members' liability

Ereh member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute ¢ the assets of the charitable compeay in the event of
it being wouad up while they ore 2 member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount gs may be
required, not exceeding £10, fof the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be g member.,

Trustees' Indernities

Subject to the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, the Trust maintains directors' and officers' liability insurance
which gives appropriate cover for any liability incurred or legal action brought against them In connection with their
acting in their capacity as trustees of the Trust,

Principal actlvities

The Trust's activities are governed by the Articles of Association which specifies the role as being to advance for the
public benelit education in the United Kingdom, In particular to establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and
developing schools ("the mainsiream Academies’) offerlng a broad and balanced curriculum or educational Instilutions
which are principaliy concerned with providing fuli-time or part-time education for children of compulsory school age
who, by reason of iliness, exclusion from school or otherwise, may not for any period receive suitable education unless
alterngtive prevision is made for them ("the alternative provision Academies™) or 16 to 19 Academiss offering a
curriculum provision for pupils with Special Educational Needs ("the Special Academies").

Reeruitmeilt and appointment of new {rustees

There are four members of the Trust, Lestey Adums, Marion Lioyd, Clive Bush and Gary Peile who have the autharity
to appoint up fo 10 frustees. The articlss of the Trust allow the trustees to appoint additional co-oped members. In
determining membership of the Trust board, the members take Into account the skills, knowledge and experience of
potential trustees. Tn addition the members seek to ehsure that all trustees have a passion for education and a
determination to assist the Trust management v securing improvement of attainment in Trust schools. The Board
similarly takes into account the skills, knowledge and experience of potentinl trustees whe could then be co-oped to join
the board.

Inductlon and training of new trustees

Trustees bave been-made aware of their responsibilities and new trustees are provided with an induction pack prier fo
Jjoining the board, New trustess are invited to aitend one board meeting prior (0 accepting office and have the
opportunity to meet our Chalr, Chief Executive and Company Seeretary prior fo taking up their rale. We also encourage
trustees fo visit schools that form part of the Trust to understand their rofe in the wider work of the Trust,

We have sought o continue our progremme to ensure owr trustees are updated on their respensibilities and have, for
example, used the development of our policy slatements across the trust {0 explain the relationships betweon the board,
its focal bodles and schools. I addition we have used the scheme of delegation to fusther explain those positions, We
have also used the growing relatlonship with our schools to examine in more detail the financial and school
improvement responsibilities of our trustees and have used the review of governance across Multi Academy Trusts
(MATs) carried out in January 2013 by the All Parliamentary Group on Education Governance and Leadership,
supported by the National Governors Asseclation to ald our examination of' the effectiveness of the board.
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRUCTURE, GOYERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Organisational structure :

The Trust board has established three commiitees to undertake detailed examination of aspects of the Trust's operation.
These three comimittees are:

= Audi

- Remuneration and Personnel

- Pinance and General Purposes

The minutes of each committee are received by the Board and the chair of each committee reports back to the board on
its work, The terms of roference for each committee are reviewed annually, The Trust board retains responsibility for
oversight of the work of the Trust oa schoof Improvement activities and the key decisions around finance and
personnel,

Each school operates with a local governing body, whose work is governed by & scheme of delegation, Tn addition, the
Trust has agreed manuals with schools that set owl the delegated responsibilities within each school.

The Chief Executive, Gary Pelle, is the accounting officer for the Actlve Learning Trust. The Board has established that
day to day decision making rests with the Chief Executive and his senior team and the Chief Executive reporls back 1o
the Board at each meeting swith botl) a record of work of the Trust since the last meeting and with potential changes in
the waerkload of the Trust which may fmpact on resourcing,

Risk management
The trustees have a dufy to identify and review the risks to which the academy trust is exposed and fo ensure
appropriate conirels are in place to provide reasonable assurance against fraud and error.

As stated abave, the Trust has an andit committee which regularly reviews the Trust’s risk register. The work of the
Commitles is then reported back to the Board. The senior leadership team of the Trust ate responsible for the regular
review of the risk register for the Trust and for ensuring that contingency arrangements are put in place to reduce those
risks,

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objecfs and ajms

The Active Learning Trust's primee alm is to establish, malatain and develop academy schools offering a broad and
balanced curriculum, The Trust exists to enable all pupils In its schools to achieve to the best of their ability in all that
they do. In order to do this the Trust has gained Department for Education (DE) approval as & multi Academy sponsor
and hes drawn together The key object of the Active Learning Trust is to ralse standards of education in those schaols
approved {o join the Trust by the Secretary of State, The Trust does this through developing aud implementing school
improvement activities designed to ensure that every pupil aftending an Active Learning Trust school has the
epportunity to access a broad and balanced cunfeutum that s based upon (but is extended beyond) the Natlonal
Currleulum,

As pait of ifs work, the Trust seeks to ensure that its schools has access fo evidenced based school Improvement

activities that will support the achievement of pupils and also has access to resources and experience of other
organisations with whom partnershing have the potential 1o help mest the overall aim of the Trust,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FGRTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

Objectives, strategies and activities

Our vision is 1o raise standards in all the schools and settings we work with so that they can become outstanding. We
will do this by maximising our impact at school level, both with sehools in need of significant improvement and with
those that are already good and we will work with currenily outstanding schools both to malntaln that judgement and
use their expertise to support others. Through this approach we will huild a broad professional partnership of
Academies that share the same vislon and values represented by the Frust,

Specificaliy we will:
- Bupport the drive 1o ralse standards in the lowest performing schools, through sponsorship and the deployment of cur
own team of experienced school improvers and with the support of existing high performing schools

- Continually improve our capacity to snsure that the guality of what we deliver remalns at an outstandingly high level
by ensuring there are strong systems of performance management In piace in all schools to support improvement,
seeking out and valuing excellent performance and by enswing good value for monsy

- Ensure the delivery of high quality education through our Acadermies fo support pupils across all age ranges from tho
early years fo post I6

- Work with Local Authorities on schoo! organisation issues to address local communities’ demand for the provision of
high quality school places locally

- Develop the teadership, management and governance in all our schools so that we grow and raaintain the best leaders,
and act as a "Training School" network to grow the next generatlon of effective teachers, school Jeaders, support staff
and governos :

~ Establish a strong professional pactnership of Acllve Learning Trust Academles so that they can stimulate and support
each other across all aspects of teaching and learning and leadarship and management,

- Provide value for money services to our schools that minimise administretion locally and maximisc the potentlal for
our managers fo be leaders in thelr schocis. The Trust will fully utilise cuiting edge IT systems to provide cost effective
solutions and operations within and across s schools,

- Ensurc as 2 business, the Trust masimises the potential for income and maintaing a high level of control on cosis
which provides long term seourlty for the Trust and its schools.

Public benefit

Trustees have, as part of their gverall role, ensured that the Trust has nndertaken its tole to support all pupils in all the
schools approved to be part of the Trust. Ag a Trust, the Board recognises its resporsibiity for the sound management
of publie funds end to enable the focus of the Trust to be on the prime objective (o support pupils to maximise thelr
potential. All funds are used to defiver the objectives of the Trust. There are no shargholders of the Trust and, therelore,

all funds are utilised to deliver the aims of the Trust,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRATEGIC REFORT

Achievement and performance

Charftable qetivities

T'he Trust's approved business plan sets out the ambition up to 31 August 2013 for up to 15 schools o join the Trust
avar Lhe course of the flrst two yeats of operation, The Trust is pleased that 2 tofal of fourteen schools are aleady
members of the Trust, these are:

The Neale-Wade Academy, March, Cambridgeshire - 1 April 2013
Burrowmaoor Primary School, March, Cambridgeshire - 1 July 2013

Gusford Primary School, ipswich, Sultolk ~ 1 August 2013

Westwood Primary School, Lowestofi, Suftblk - 1 August 2013

Chesterton Primary School, Cambridge, Cambridgeshire + | September 2013
Red Qak Primary School {formerty Fen Park Primary School), Lowestoft Suftolk - 1 March 2014
Greve Primary School, Lowestott, Suffotk - | May 2014

Sidegate Primary School, Ipswich, Suffofl « 1 May 2014

Hillside Primary School, Ipswich, Suffolk - 1 July 2014

Kingsfield Primary School, Chatterls, Cambridgeshire - 1 July 2014

Isle of Ely Primary School, Bly, Cambridgeshive - | September 2015
Pakefleld Primary School, Lowesteft, Suftolk - 1 January 2015

Reydon Primary School, LowestoR, Suffolk « 1 March 2013

Chantry Acadeimy, Ipswich, Sutfolk - Joined the Trust on 1 September 2013

Going concern

The Multi-Acedemy funding agreement, together with the supplemental flinding agreement with each schoal, provides
certointy over funding from the Department of Education. Each separate supplemental agreement pravides for at least 7
years approval for fonding. At the time of wiiting this repoct, the Trust has approved the potentis] expangion of the
Trust, throngh new proviston, which will increase Income and alloty the Trust to extend its operations to suppert the
schools In their determination to ralse standards.

Afler making appropriate enquiries, the board of trusiees hes a ressorable expectation that the academy lrust has
adequate resources to continue in operatlonol existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt
the going concer hasis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going
concern basis can be found in the Note of Accounting Policies,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LINUTED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievement and performance

Key performence indicators

Qur KPIs are primarily related fo the seliing and evaluation of targets at schoal level for pupil performance. These
targets are regularly monitored through detailed meetings belween our Chlel’ Excoutive and the relevant headteacher
and reported to our board through regular reports from the Chiet Executive,

in terms of the trust itself our key performance indicators relate to our position in {erms of the number of schools e
intend to support as academies. As at 31st Augus! 2015 this was against an overall target of up to 15 schools. Alongside
this is the need for our canstant review of the budgel position as the Trust grows,

ALT has developed a strang loeally based hub network of schools that work in parinership to achieve the outcomes
deseribed below,

Within one year of transfer all ALT schools will have:

-a fully reviewed curriculum and assessment model and be on 1 securs footing for sustained improvement

- evidence of clear improvements in the expected progress of puplils in reading writing and mathemalics

- over 70% consistently good or batter teaching

- established staffing structures to meet the requirement of the new national currictlum and rapid improvement
- contracts teviewed o ensure maximum value for money

- established and effective Local Governing Bodies with training and regular updates

- systems for making highly cifective use of individual pupil data to effect improvement

- attendance in line with or better than the natioral average

Within two full academic years no sponsored school will be belos floor targets.

Within two years the K81 and 2 ouleomes {n English and Maths will rise in our sponsored scademies by a minimum of
10% and continue aceslerated pragress until they reach and exceed national expectations. This will be achieved through
a strapg and consistent focus on the core subjects and verlfied (hrough internal and external lesson judgements against
Ofilted critetia.

1t is fmportant o' also define success more broadly than K82 targets alone and ALT expects tmprovements in the
following areas:

- Improvement in planning and finovation, :

- School self-gvaluation and the reviewing and menlloring of progress for continuous improvement,

- Jloint working across hubs to share and seed effective practice

- The establishment of & strong professional partnership of school leaders; who share responsibllity for the success of
the Trust and the outcomes for all its pupils

Our financial key performance indicators across the trust are shown below, which show a change in the staff costs KPT
basis for 2016:

2016 20§53 20135

Target Actual Target
Teaching staff' costs as a % of tota! oulgeing resources NIA 61.3% 68%
Tatal staff costs as & % of total cutgoing resources 75% 73.5% N/A

£1000 £000 £000
Total incoming resources from charltable activities 26,608 26,002 22,600
Met current assets 3,900 3,834 2,100
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRATEGIC REPORT
Achievement and performance
Primary and Secondary - Hub Based

As the Hub madel hag developed and become more embedded across the Trust i1 has now been possible to identify the
strengths and areas tor development bath within schools and across a hub. The added capacity of the Cambridgeshire
Hub Lead aliows for the alignment of key activities, ensuring consistency in resource, challenge and support, This
allows for a report on each hub's activities alongside individual schools progress.

HUB
LOWESTOFT
Priorities Sehool to Sehool Collaboration
- Assessiment and curricuium development - SLDG group
- Matking and Feedback development - Increased involvement with Leading Active Learning

(LAL) (to Include support stail)
- Newly Qualified Teacher (NQT) induction Programme - Foint Sports Programme in place

- Subject Leadsrs Development Group (SLDG) - Maoderation programme in place for the whols year
{RA lead)

- Pupil Premium Self Reviews in place - Family Bupport Worker network of support

- Tnduction for now staff to Hub - Safeguarding tralning in place for all staffand
governors

~ Recruitment and succession planning (detai] TBC) - Well-Being: Flu Jabs being provided for all staff

- Bridge Project on the Arts in place across the hub

- Hub diary/handbaook to website :

- Assessiment for Learning (AfL) Feedback training for
TA staff 3.09.15 () Westwood

Westwood Primary, Lowestoft

EYFS remains a strength {outstanding) with the school being asked to speak at national conferences; colleagues are
also proyiding suppert across the Hub. FI teacher is taking on addivonal responsibility and is included in the
forthcoming LAL programme, The schaol are well advanced in the implemnentation of new assessment systems and
cyclical plans In place to develop the curriculum. School Developmeirt Plasning and Self Evaluation processes are
strong. Strong strategie leadership and role modelling has ensured rapid schoal improvement but, with 2 x NQT and
maternity cover {In addition to year group changes) time to embed and suppord this change is needed before a
re-inspection i even considered,

Grave Primary, Lowestoff

Although nationally reported data has shown progress over thme, the 2015 results declined. Attendance alsp remaing
akey focus area There was very positive start to term, partioularly with relation to T&L and the vibrant currlenlum, A
learning review at the end of {4st term raised sonie concerny as to pupil learning behaviours in addition to some R1
teaching, Changes In staffing (and year groups) have since taken place and an early OfSTED review planned for I
October will provids clarity, As a part of this review there needs to be a clear focus on the ability of the chiidren to
artiealate their learning SEF and SDP processes are In hand byt there remains a yeal need o ensure thet the context
of the school Is clearly evident, particularly given the Y6 results in 2015, A 8EN review (by the zeting DHT) s
currently underway, A similar EYFS review is being discussed (22.09,15) and should indicate an Outstanding
grading.Further support Is needed to enswre that Governors are 'OISTED ready,

Red Qak, Lowestoft

Results at the end of K82 in 2015 were significantly improved but this improvement cannot, as yet, be seen as o trend,
GPS results were the Iowest across the Trust and KS1 dala is, in genersl, well below national. Mobilily remains the
most serious concern; a significant number of pupils have already been admitted to the school this term (including in
¥6) and many have serlous specific necds,

There have, howaver, been quite dramatic developments in the past 6 months; the school Is now calm and well
organised. Pupils' learning belaviours have hmproved, staffing 13 more secure and the 4 NQT staff have received a
positive Induetion. Senfor leadership has been strengthened and key staff have been placed in appropriate year groups.
Recent visits to the school from Reglonal Officers and ALT colleagues have confirmed these positive developments,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRATEGIC REPORT

Achievement and performance

Palkefield, Lowestofi :

Whilst not expecting an faspection until the end of the academic yeay there is an intense focus on the quality of T&L

during this term. Consequently, EYFS and Marking und Feedback are key fealures of the new SDP in addition to on
going strategio objectives for T&L, disadvantaged pupils and curriculuny/assessment.

A maths review 30.09.15 and OSTED style review on 13/14.10.15 wili provide cfear indicators for next steps, Systerns
are in place to ensure thal Governors understand their role ane that of the Trust,

Reydon, Leowesfolt

Significant stafling changes have taken place for the start of the new academic year. The appaintment of on experienced
tegeher (from Hiilside) appears to have strengthened capacity, Improved results st K82 in 2015 reflected the focussed
work identified by the EHT and HOS and the inpact of the Y6 teacher who remains in this year group for the coming
year, The HOS has a elear T&L brief thls tern and & review of progress and impact is plannsd by half term with the
EHT and Hub Lead,

HURB
CANBRIDGESHIRE
Prioritles Sehool to School CoHaboration
- Assessment end curricuhun development - Increased involvement with Leading Active
Learning(LAL} {to include support and office staff)
- Staftlng and recriitment - Leadership Programme Group
- NQT induction - TA Development Programme N'WA/KPS and BPS
= Qovernor network and collaborative training ~ Competitive community sports programime led by
NWA Team at Buirowimoor to ing! Kingsfield
- Embed the work of LAL across Hub - Moderatlon programme it place for the whole year
{MIL lead)

- Assessment and Curriculum group supported by Trust
- Governor training programime developed across hub
- Bridge Project {ML to be involved)

Chesterton Printary School, Cansliridge

Stable staff in place with a new Head of Schoo! starting September - adjusting the leadership model, focused work
around this will be supported by the Hub Lead and Trust, Very strong NQT in Receptlon. Staff starting to work across
Chesterton and Isle of Ely Primary (2.g. SENCO and Cwrieulum and Assessment). Results for Phonics are above
national and GLD {s above national. There are still challenges to be faced from some parents and pupils - these are
being addressed in conjunction with the Trust, Wider support for pusils mental health and well being is being supported
by a placentae Project actoss Isle of Fly and Chesterton - this starts October 2013, Stoff are now engaged in a range of
CPD ofiers both within the Trust and with Develtoping Leaders programine. Standards are good and progress is goad -
ot entry is below national.

Burrewmoor Primary School, March

Extensive work post- OfSTED ¢ Including - restructure of teaching roles, TA support roles and middle leadership,
Curriculum review to focus on the learning, rigorous systems and non-negotizble put in plave fo ensure conslstency and
alignment across the school, Although systems ave In place, the fipact of them in the efassroom is not yet cvident,
Development of new communleation and co-operation strands with parents and the wider community has helped with
engagenient. For example - Parents forum established, new governing body and chair, refined communication ywith
parents to ensure engagement and relationships ave strengthened,

Kingsfield Primavy, Chatteris

Results are significantly below floor ¢nd improvement kas not happened as quickly due to on-going recruitment issues.
Kingsfield has a full staff for Auturmn 15, however it is made up of 40% NQT (5). Capacity of SLT (AT and DHT)
has grown and middle leaders have successfully engaged with Leading Active Learning{LAL) programime across all
phases - this has led {o new roles (Phese leadership). Data Is below the floor, Pupil Premium Grant need evaluation and
this will be carried out as part of the review process. Quality of teaching and consistency needs to be addressed.
Coverning body needs to raise challenge and sceure a efear picture of the schoo! and where it ts going,
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THE ACTIYE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015
STRATEGIC REPORT
Achievement and performance
Neale Wade Academy

Extensive work has taken place on the development of capacity at both middle and senfor leadership. Thete s now o
Head of School fn place (previous VP). The sehool has seen a posltive impact of the Leading Actlve Learning
programme acress all departments, However, results dropped significantly in maths. The school predicted 62% for §
A*C including E/M they actually achleved 53% but lost 7% off maths results due to o rafsing of the ¢/D boundary,
English results were 75% and the levels of progress were very high. Progress across subjects - theye were some other
depariments that let the school down e.g. MFL and Art - these have been addressed quickly by the SLT(training,
visiting seftings with good practice, adoptlon of new systems). The inlernal view of the school and its progress will be
monitored and evaluated by Hub Lead with external support,

Isle of Eby Primary

Abthough spilt across two temporary buildings on = host sile, the school has established itself well within the
cammunity, Bxternal and internal reviews of the currieulum, teaching end learning and pupll progress clearly
demonstrate very goeod progress, Recruftment of high quality stafl has enabled s more flexible staffing structure -
adding slgnificant capacity to small team. New governlng body formed and Head of Schoo! in place alongside Exec
Head teacher, The team are engaged n Leading Active Learning programme(LAL) this year which should benefit both
in tetmss of capaclty bullding and also engagement with the wider Trust network, The whols schoo! will move to the
aew build in Dec 15/Jan 16 - opening the Spring Term in 2 new setting « focused transitional planning Is needed to
ensure the school opens in January, Developing the Head of School role and Exec Head teacher role to ensure greatest
impoct - this Is 2 basis of the work by Hub Lead for Autumu,

HUB
IPSWICH .
Priorities School to School Collaboration

- Assessment and curriculum development - Leading Active Learning Groups
~ Marking and Feedback development - Moderation and assessment developntent
- Leadership Solution Sessions Scheduled for EYFS,
K81, LKS82, UKS2, Deputy headteachers - Bubject and Phase collaboration
- Challenge meetings -Scheduled for middle leaders in
all seheols - Leadership support and challenge
- Hub Development Conferances - assessment,
curriculura and teaching and Fearning - Bridge Arts Projeat

- Governor development
The bub reviewed how it Increased capacity and had impact last year. The formal, scheduled callaboration was seen
a3 very useful. It was also aoied, however, that & good deal of valualile inter-school cooperation was on an ‘as useful’
basts. We have therefore Introduced a standing ltem for hub meetings; Headteachers will share the current priorfties
or emerging challenges for the school and request liaison or support from other schools. This could b2 providing an
opporiunity to observe effective practice, inviting  colleague to be part of a planning meeting, or even 4 request for
an ‘oulside’ set of eyes to give an objeciive parspective, To support this, It has been agreed that a directory of
eftective practice within the hub will be created.

Hillside, Ipswich
Mobility s an issus thal hes tmpacted on results
Ensuring the nine new teaching staff ave inducted effectively and perform well
Suppott the three now phase leaders {(EYFS, LES2, UKS2)
Improve T&L {(particulurly through the new role of Lead practitioner)
Establish and increasingly effective Local Governing Body
- will support the SLT with regard (o self~evaluation and strategic planning - regular strategic meetings with
Headteacher and pertinent leaders
- emphases during middle leader challenge mestings will reflect these priosities
- Middie leadership will he strangthened through a programme of selution-focused conchlng sesslons
- will conduct Quality of Teaching veviews with PLs
- llalsing with Chair of governors to support the development of the LGB - twvo immedizte actions For the CoQ fs to
draw up an Improvement plan and devefop a LGB monitoring and evaluation process
LAL programme - three colleagues from Hillside are participating
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRATEGIC REFORT
Achievernent and performanece

Gusford, Ipswich
Good {mprovement in results, DHT In place who has good background and knowledge of assessment and progress
meastre. The Hub lead has coached the HT well and developed really strong leadership qualities, The school is more
sirategic in it view of school improvement. Key focus areas
- The standard of work in books and the quality of marking and feedback
« Although writing lmproved by 19% in K82 - maintain momentum on improvement
- Promoting chilcren’s responsibitily for fearning and improving learning bebaviours
~ Developing leadership at all levels
= LAL will be supported with three colleagues

Sidegate, Ipswich
Consistent improvement needs to be secured, the level of Pupil Premium pupils is low and the actual results could be
improved. Stable staff, good use of Leading Active Learning Programme to develop colleagues, Key focus areas
~ Increase oppertunities for children to develop and demonstrate writing skills
- Develaping T&L within a mastery curriculum
- Increasing creativity in the classroom
Further development of the Bridge Arts Project will enhance curriculum.

Financial review

Frincipal funding sourees

The great majority of the Trust's income is derfved from recusrent grants from the BFA (Educstion Funding Agency) o
sach of the Individual Academles within the Trust. The use of these funds fa resteieled to the particular purpose of the
grant. The grants recelved from the BFA in the period 1st Seplember 2014 to 31st August 2G15 and the assoclated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financlal activities,

Voluntary income of £6,743,000 (2014 £28,089,000) is included within the Statement of Financial Activities in respect
of fixed assets and cash balances transferred on the conversion of each school transferred Into the Trust, in accordance
with EFA requirements. Fixed Assefs transterred at conversion ave included in the Restricted Fived Asset Fund, All
other assets and liabillties introduced, excluding the opening LGPS (Local Government Pension Scheme) defleit
position are included within wnrestricted funds, The LGPS deficit introduced in respect of new schools is shown as
"Transfers of FRS 17 deficits from Lecal Authorities” and amounted to £610,000 {2014 £1,818,600), The total deficil
carried forward on the restricied fund pension reserve, caleulated in accordance with the requirements of Financial
Reporting Standard (FRS) 17 amounted to £7,280,000 (20141 £6,050,000).

During ¢he year ended 31st August 2015 the Trust received totzl income, including capital income, of £34,705,000
(2014 £51,813,000), of which £1,784,000 (2014: £],915,000) was unrestricted Income, Total resources expended for
the year ended 31st August 2015 amounted to £28,032,000 (2014: £18,500,0060). Total funds cavried forward ag at 31
August 2015 amounted to £86,112,000 (2014, £80,119,000).

Imvestment policy

The Trust werks with its bankers (Barelays PLC) te place surplus funds held in individual Acadamy accounts on
deposit, This process does provide Hmited additional income and will be kept under review to establish if arrangements
can be made that improve this position without placing funds at risk,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

STRATEGIC REPORT
Financial review
Reserves policy

The trustees review Lhe level of reserves held on an annual basis, This review encompasses the level and sustalnability
ol current and future income stveams, the need to match income with commitments, and the adequacy of reserves, The
Trust's cutrent level of reservas, both restricted and unresirtoted, is as shown with the financial statements, see note 18,

The trustees have not so far set a minimum level for the free reserves that should be maintained by the Trust or its
individual Academies, There is, however, a clear expectation that reserves will be maintained at a level sufficlent to
cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and fo previde a contingency to deal with unexpected emergencies.

The Trust also maintains one further fund, the LGPS fund. This represents the charitable company's share of the surplus
ar deficit of the Cambridgeshire CO and Suffolk CC pension funds, caleulated h accordence with FRS17. Further
details of the cateulatlons and assumptlons underlying the balance on this fund are set out In the financial statements.

Principnl risks and uncertainties

The Trust operates a risk reglster which is reviewed and updated regularly and reported to the Trust's Audit Comniities
and then onto the Trust Board. [ tetms of risks, we have sought to Implement the rangs of pelicies to act as
couttermensures to those visks as well a8 maintalning effeotive communication across the Trust and its schools {o
ensure that risks are minimised,

Our uncertainties relate primarily to the 1iming of schools joining the Trust, which is outside of the Trust's desision
making and the potential impact on budgets both by Buctuations i pupil cumbers at schoal level {the main dilver of
budgets) and changes in the funding scheme for schools. To reduce the impact of these unceriainties we require longer
term planning at school level, which provides prudent estimates of pupl! numberz and keeping in contact with national
proposals around funding. This enables us to make early declsions to protect the financial position of the Trust,

Financkal and risk management objectives and policles

Our objectives are to ensure that all schools across the Trust and the Trust kself, has policies and proecdures in place
that are clear and easily understood and implemented, We have continued to work with our portner, Handsam Lid, to
provide model health and safety policies both for the “rust and for sach individua! schools to implement focally. In
addition 1o those policies, we have provided a vange of policies across human resourees, finance and procursment that
are designed to ensure that all schools work in ways commensurate with thelr legal responsibilities and in ways which
secure the financial position of the Trust.

Future developmients

The Departrnent for Education has confirmed that the Aciive Learning Trust is an approved spousor for schools in
Cambridgeshire and Suffblk. At the time of writing, the Trust is aware that other schools wish to join the Trust, but such
approvals are in the hauds of the Secretary of State,

I terms of the Trust's work for other schools and trusts, we continue to seek potential work that is in line with our
approved memorandum and articles of association, but the amount of werk is likely to be lower than in previous years
due to the increased number of schools likely to join the Trust.

AUDITORS

The auditors, SBM Assoclates Limited, trading as 88M & Co, will be proposed for re-appointment at the forthcomsing
Annuel General Mesting.

Report of the trustees, incorporating a strategle report, approved by order of the board of trustees, as the company

divectors, on 10 December 20135 and signed on the bourd's behal F by:

Ms M Lloyd - Trustee

Page 11




THE ACTIYE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Scope of Responsthility

As frustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibilily for ensuring that The Active Learning Trust Limited has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financiat and otherwise. However such a system is designed Lo manage
rather than eliminate the risk of Rilure {o uchieve business objectives, and can provide only ressonable and not absolute

assuirance against inaterial niisstatement of loss,

The board of the trustees has defegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of bolk propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the {unding agreement between The Active
Learning Trust Lintted and the Sccretary of State for Eduention. They are also responsible for reporting to the board
of trusiees any material weaknesses or breakdowns In fnternal contrel.

Governance

The information on governanee included here supplements that described in the Report of the Trustees and in the
Sintement of Trustees Responsibilities, The beard of trustees has formally met 5 times during the year. Aftendance
during the year af meetings of the board of trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of & possible
Ms L Adams 5 ]
D J Bateson OBE y £
J Beswick 4 5
C Bush 4 5
M A Kepr 4 5
Ms M Lloyd 5 5
G P Peile 4 A
My M Toft 5 5
My J Cirtchey - -

The fnance and general purposes committes is a sub-committee of the main bowrd of trustees. Tts purpase is to
unclertake detailed scrutiny of the Trust's finances and to enswwe the Trust's assets are properly secured and maintained,
The Cormittes hos been involved In the discussion around processes and progedutes, recognising that it has been
importani tov the whole Trust board to be involved in finnoce decislon making to ensure all Trustees have clavity in how
the Trust is set up to meet its responsibilities as set out in the Trust's finding statement, The Committee has also
overseen the Trusl’s work to ensure the new school sexving Ely in Cambridgeshire opens on thme and hag also provided
the lead on approval of budgets for new schools, where a Tocal governing body s in the procass of being established.

Altendance at meetlings in the year was as follows;

Trustee Meetings altendead Oul of n possible
I Beswick (Chair) 3 4
C Bush 1 2
C Bush (as Officer of the Trust} 2 2
G Peile 2 2
G Paile (as Officer of the Trust) 2 2
M Toft 4 4
L Adams (Seconded Chalr I i

The audit conunittee Is also a sub-committes of the main beard of rustees. Its purpose ls as follows:
- Roview the risks to intamal financial control across the Trust

- Agree and minage & pregramme of work that will address these risks, [nform the stalenent of internal control and, so
far ag s possible, provide assurance to the external auditors,

The Commiltee has delegated responsikility for the overall detziled serutiny of the Trust's finances and its work informs
this annual statement.,

Atlenctance at meetings in the vear wag as follows:
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

Trustee Meetings attended Out ofa possible
1, Adams 2 2
C Bush (as Ofticer of the Trust) 1 2
M Kerr 2 2
G Peile (os Officer of the Trust} 2 2

The Remuneration and Personnel comumittee is also 2 sub-committes of the Trust Board. Tts purpose is  to recommend
to the Board the framework or broad policy for the remuneration of the Company's Chief Executive, Chair, the
Executive Directors, and the Company Secretary.

Attendance at meetings in the year was ag follows:

Frustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
D Bakeson OBE H 1
M Lloyd 1 1
M Kerr i 1

Review of Value for Money

Ag aceounting officer of The Aclive Leaming Trust Lid, the Chief Executive {5 responsible and accountable for
“ensuring that the acadenty trust delivers good value In the use of public resources, The accounting officer is aware of
the guide to academy value for money statements published by the Edueation Funding Agency and tnderstands that
value for maney refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in refurn for the faxpayer resources
received. The accounting officer sefs out below how he has ensured that the academy trust's use of its respurces has
provided good value for money during the academic year,

The key elements to the work to seoure value for money in the Trust are:

~ The appointment of a Trust Procurement Manager to focus on the delivery of value for money procurement with the
creation of & Trust Procurement Strategy that will be shared with all key stekeholders and deliver & shared
anderstanding of the opportanities and priority areas

- The central management of Formulaie Capital spending programme across the Trust that delivers best value by
minimising the overall costs of consultancy and directs funding at the most pressing projects.

-Specifically the adoption of catering tenders at a mmber of schools which has reduced the overall costs (subsidy by
the school} of meals provision which, in turn, drives more money into front line services.

- Ensurgd salary lfevels for the small central feam are at or below the median for staff working in similar sized
organisatlons, following an external review of our salary levels which showed [n all sreas salary levels nre below the
levels of simitar sized organisations.

- Continued to balance the need for central support with external provision so that our costs are, and remain, low
compared to ofher mult! academy frusts.

The Purpose of the Systent of Tnternal Conirel

The system of internal control fs deslgned to manage risk to a veasonable level rather than o eiiminate all risk of failure
to achieve policles, aims and objeetives. It can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness, The system of internal control is based on an on-going process deslgned to identify and priorliise the risks
to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectlves, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being
vealised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal confrol has been in placs in the Active Learning Trust for the period | September 2014 fo 31 August
2015 and up to the date of approval of the annval report and financial siatements,

Page [3




THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

GOYERNANCE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Capaeity to Handle Risk

The board of truslees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the cperating,
financial and compliance controls that kave been implemented to mitigate those risks, The board of trusiees is of the
view (hat there Is a formal on-going process for identifying, cvaluating and managing the academy frust's significant
visks that has been in place for the period Ist September 2014 to 3F August 2015 and up o the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of frustees,

The Risk and Contrel Framework

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information
and achministrative procedures inchuding the segregaifon of dutles and u system of delegstion and accountability. Tn
particular it includes:

- compretensive budgeting and moaitoring systems with an annual budget and periedic financial reports which are
reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees;

- vegular reviews by the finance and general purposes committee of reports which indicate finaneial performance
against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

- setting {argets to measure financial and other performance;

- clearly defined purchasing (nsset purchase or capltal Investment) guidelines;

- delegation of authority nud segregation of duties;

- ldentification and management of risks.

The board of trustees has considered the need for 1 specific internal audit function and has decided;
- to appoint Caton Fry and Co Lid as {nternal auditor

- The Internal Auditors role Includes giving advice on finamcial matters wnd performing a range of cheeks on the
individual school and academy trust's financial systems. The Internal auditors report their findings {o the Andit
Committes and the chair of that Commitice then reports on that work as part of the report bask to the Trust Board,

- During the course of this year of operation, the internal audit workload included completing reports on five academies
which had safisfactory outcomes, together with reviews of central trust operations, and trust-wide payrell and
month-end pracedures.

Review of Effectiveness
As accounting afficer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal

conlrol. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the worl of the internal auditors;
- the work of the extemna! auditor;
- the financial manageinent and governonce self-assessment process, including the schemes of delegation operating

across the Trust and in schools and
- the work of (he execulive managers within the academy trust who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework,

‘The accounting officer has been advised of the imaplicatlons of the resuit of their review of the system of internal control
by the audit committes and by the senior executive feam and a process of continued assessment ensares that the
workplan for the Trust ensures continuous improvemsnt of the syslem Is In place,

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 10 December 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

Mz M Lloyd - Trustee

M kau}é{f\

Mr Gary Peile - Accounting Offieer
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITERD

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FTORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2615

As accounting officer of The Active Learning Trust Limited 1 have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust board of trustees and the Edueation Funding Agency of material irvegularity, impropriety and non-compliance with
EFA {emms and conditions of funding, under the funding agreement in place between the academy trust and the
Secretary of Slate for Education. As parl of my congideration [ have had due regard to the requivemenis of the
Avademles Finansial Handbook,

1 confirm that [ and the academy trust board of truslees are able to identify any material Irreguler or improper use of
funds by the academy frust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook.

i confirm that no instences of material irregularity, frpropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to

date, 1 any instances ore fdentified after the date of this staiement, these will be notified fo the board of trustees and
EFA.

'qf’% f/w

Mr Gary Peile « Accouniting Officer

10 Decatber 2015
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

STATENMENT OF TRUSTEES RESPONSIBILITIES
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The trustees (who act as governors of The Active Learning Trust Limited and are slso the divectors of the charitable
company for the purpases of company law)  are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial
statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Edueation Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company [aw requires the frustees to prepare Mnancial statements for each financlal year, Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial stalements unless they are satisfied that they give a tree and falr view of the state
of affairs of the academy trust and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and
expenditure, of the academy trust for that perfod. i preparing those financlal statements, the trustees are required to

- select suitable accounting polleies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Chatity SORP 2005;

- make judgements and estimates that are teasonable and prydent;

- state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclozed
and explained in the financial statements;

- prepare the [inancial staiements on the going concern bosis unless it is {nappropriate to preswms that the
academy trust will continue in business.

The trusiees aro responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
acaderny trust's transactions and discloss wilh reasonable accuracy of any time the finansial position of the academy
trust and to enable them to ensure that the financlal statements comply with the Companics Act 2006, They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assels of the academy trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud end other irregularities,

The trustees ave responsible for ensuring that in its conduet and operation the academy trust applies financial and other

confrols, which conform with the requitements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants recelved from the EFA/DIE have been appliad for the purposes intended.

In g0 far as the trustess are gware;

- therg is fio refevant audlt information of which the aeadenty trust's audltors are unaware; and

- the irustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to eslablish that the auditors are aware of that information,

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 10 December 2015 and signed on its behatf by:

Ms M Lioyd  « Trustec
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

We have audited the financial statements of The Active Leaming Trust Limited for the year ended 31 August 2013 on
pages twenty fo forty four. The financial reporting framework that has been epplied in their preparation is applicable
law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the
Accounis Direction 2014 to 2015 issued by the Education Funding Agency (EFAY,

This report s made solely to the academy frust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006, Our andit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy frust's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' repori and for no other purpose, To the fullest extent pernitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the seademy trust and the academy trust's
members as a body, for our audit wark, for this repert, or for the opinions we have formed.

1 H T
Respective responsibilities of trustees and anditors i
As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustess Responsibilities set ont on page sixteen, the trustees (who are also
the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the prepatation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

Qur responsibility {s to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accotdance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Treland), Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors,

Scope of the audit of the financlal siatements

An zudit jnvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial siatements sufficient to give
reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or
errof. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropilate to the academy trust's
circumstences and have besn consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting esttmates mades by the trustees; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read
ail the financizl and non-financial information in the Report of the Trustees to identify material inconsistencies with the
audifed financial statements and to identlfy any information that is apparently materially incorrect based om, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the cousse of performing the audit. If we become aware of
any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report,

Opinion on {inancial statements

In our opinion the financial statements; ,

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31 Augnst 2015 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its ingome and expenditure, for the vear then ended;

- have been properly prepared in aceordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been propared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

~ lave been prepared in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2614 to 2018 dssued by the EFA,

Opinion on otlier matier preservibed by the Compantes Act 2006
In our opinion the information given In the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial
statements ars prepared is congistent with the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF
THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

Matters on which we are required fo report by exception .

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matfers where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

you if, in our opinion:

- adeqguate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and raturns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received ell the information and explanations we require for our audit.

!

W

- Stephen MeAlpine FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for end on behalf of SBM Associates Limited, trading as $BM & Co
Statutory Auditer
24 Wandssvorth Road
London
W8 2IwW

10 December 2015

Page 18




INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REFORT ON REGULARITY TO
THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING AGENCY

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education Funding Agency
(EFA), as included in the Academnles Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015, we have carrfed out an engagement io obtain
limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Activs Learning Trust Limited
during the period 1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and
the financial fransactions conform to the autharities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Actlve Leaming Trust Limited and the EFA in accordance with the terms of out
engagement letfer. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state fo The Active Learning Trust Limited and the
EFA those matters we are required 1o state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by Jaw,
we do not aceept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Active Learning Trost Limited and the EFA, for our
work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed, :

Respective responsibilities of The Active Lemrning Trust Limited's accountiig officer and the reporting
aceountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the tequirements of The Active Learning Trust Limited's fonding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September
2014, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and incoms received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them,

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with cur engagement leiter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2014 to 2015, 'We report to you whether anything has come ta cur attention in carrying
ont our work which suggests that in all material respects, expendifure disbursed and income received dwing the period
1 September 2014 to 31 August 2015 have not been applied to purposes intended by Patliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approeach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Dirsction 2014 to 2015 issued by the BFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in onr engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assuvance engsgement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regulatity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does 110t enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable assucance engagement.  Accordingly, we do nof express a positive opinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regnlarity and propriety of the
academy trust's income angd axpenditure.

We canducted our work in accordance with Technical Release TECHDS/12AAF issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. In accordance with that Technical Release we have carried out the pracedures we
consider necessary to be able to report on whether anything has come te our attention which suggests that in ail material
respects expenditure disbursed and income received have not been applied to purposes intended by Parllament or that
the financial transactions do not confivm to the anthorities which govern them, Qther than those procedyres undertaken
for the purposes of our audit of the financia! statements of The Active Learning Trust Limited for the year ended 31
August 2015 which provide evidence on Regularity our work as limited to only those additional procedures necessary
to provide limited assurance,

Con¢lusion )

In the course of our work, nothing has coms to our attention which suggests that in all materiaf respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the period 1 September 2014 to 31 Angust 2015 has not been applied to purposes
Intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them,

SBM Associates Limited, trading as SBM & Co
24 Wandsworth Road

London
SW82Jw

10 December 2015
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
{INCORPORATING AN INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Restricted
Unrestrieted Restricted  Fixed Asset
fund funds Fund
Note £000 £000 £1000
INCOMING RESGURCES
Incomiug resources from
genersted funds _
Voluntary income 2 28 - -
Voluntary income - Transter
from Local Authority on
conversion 22 - - 6,743
Activities for generating funds 3 1,637 - -
Trivestment ineome 4 14 - .
Incoming vesources from
charitable activities
Academy's educations]
operations 5 105 25,168 729
Other incoming resonrces - 281 -
Total incoming resources 1,784 25,449 7,472
RESOURCES EXPENDED
Costs of generating fimds
Fundraising trading: cost of
zoods sold and other costs 7 35 - -
Charitable activittes
Academy's educational :
operations ) 1,597 24,397 1.478
Governance costs G 523 = -
Total resources expended & 2157 24,367 1,478
NET INCOMING
RESOURCES BEFORE
TRANSFERS {373) 1,052 5,994
Gross transfers bebween funds 18 2433 “ 243
Net incoming/{outgeing)
resources before other
recognised gains and losses (616) 1,052 6,237
Transfers of FRS 17 deficits
from Local Authorities . {610 -
Net income/(expenditure) (616) 442 6,237
Actuarial gains/logses on
defined benefit schemes - (7Y -
Net movement in funds (616) 372 6,237

The notes form part of these financial statements
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES - CONTINUED
(INCORPORATING AN INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

2015 2014
Restrieted
Unrestricted Restricted  Fixed Asset Tofal funds Total funds
fund funds Fund
Note £1000 £1000 £4000 £'000 £'000
RECONCILIATION OF
FUNDS
Total funds brought forward 1418 (3,141} 83,842 80,119 49,544
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED
FORWARD : 802 {4,769 90,079 86,112 80,119

Incoming resources and resources espended arise trom continuing ectlvities and Include the post-avquisition results of
schools detatied in Mote 22 o the financial stalements,

The notes form part of these financial statemenis
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED (REGISTERED NUMBER: 67903002)

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 AUGUST 2015
20158 2014
Restrieted
Unrestricted Restricted  Tived Asset 'Total funds Total funds
fund funds Fund
Nota £1000 £000 2008 £'000 #1000
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible nssefs 13 - " 86,558 89,558 83,706
CURRENT ASSETS
Stocks _ 14 i - “ 11 3
Debtors 13 571 32 - 603 680
Cash at bank and in hand 1,792 2,482 521 4,795 2,956
2,374 2,514 521 5,409 3,641 .
I!
CREDITORS
Arounts falling due within one .
year 16 (1,573) (2) . (1,575) (1,178)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 801 2,512 521 3,834 2,463
TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 801 2,512 90,079 93,392 86,169
PENSTON LIABILITY 19 - {7,280) - 7,280} (6,050}
NET ASSETS &0 4,7__§) 90,079 86,112 80,119
TUNDS 18
Unrestricted funds: .
General fund . 801 1,418
Restricted funds:
Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 89,558 83,700
Pension reserve (7,280) (6,059)
General Annual Grant (GAG) 2,222 511
Other DFE/EFA grants - 8
Other government grants 93 53
DIE/EFA capital grants 521 142
Start Up Grant 197 337
83,311 78,701
TOTAL FUNDS i 86,112 30,119
o e R

The notes torm part of these fnancial statements
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED (REGISTERED NURMBER; 07903082}

BALANCE SHEET - CONTINUED
AT 31 AUGUST 2015

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 10 December 2015 and were signed on its behalf
by:

C Busl -Trustee

@N/l @w

G P Peile~Truslee

The notes form part of these tlnancial statements
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2918

2015 2014

Notes £°000 £000
Net cash inflow from aperating activities { 1,340 6,721
Casht transferred on conversion to an academy 22 166 689
Returns on investntents and servicing of finance 2 14 -
Capital expenditure and financial investiment 2 319 (5,831)
Intrease In cash in the period 1,832 1,529
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in
net debt 3
Tncresse in cash in the period 1,819 1,520
Change in net debt resulting from cash fows 1,839 1,529
Movement in net debt in the period 1,839 1,529
Net debt at 1 September 2,956 1,427
Net debt at 31 August 4,795 2,956

Cash flows arise from continuing activities and include the post-acquisition results of schools detaited in Note 22 to the
financia! statements.

The notes form part of these financial statoments
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOMING RESOURCES TO NET

OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Net incoming resources
Depreciation charges
Cupital grants from DIE/ERA

Transfer from Loeal Authority on converslon

Interest received
Increase in stocks
Decreass in debtors
Inerease in oreditors .

Difference hetween peasian charge and cash contributiong

Net cash inflow from operating activities

CASH INTLOW

2015
£'000
6,673
1,128
{708)
(6,743)
(1)
(6)
61
402
536

1,340

P e

FROM

2014
£1000
33,315
865
(138)
(28,089)
(5)
61
464
245

6,721

ANALYSIS OF CASH FLOWS FOR HEADINGS NETTED IN THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Returns on fnvestments and servicing of finance

Interest received

Net cash jnflow for returns on investments and servicing of finance

Cupital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DE/EFA

Net eash tnflow/(ouiflow) for capital expenditure and financial

investment

ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

MNet easlhi:
Cash af bank and in hand

Total

At 1914
£'000
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2015
£'000

14

re——

14

b et

(389
708

3o

Cash flow At
£1000

1,839

1,832

2014
£000

(6,016)
133

{5,881)

31/8/15
£1000

4,795

4,788




THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 AUGUST 2045

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, and in sccordance with

applicable aceounting standards the Companies Act 2006, the requiretnents of the Statement of Recommended
Practice 2003, Accounting and Reporting by Charities and the Academies Accounls Direction 2014 to 2015
issued by the EFA.

[nconiing resources
All Incoming resources aee included on the Statement of Finaucial Activities when the academy tiust is legally
entitled to the income and the amount can be quantified with reasonshle aceuracy.

Granls are included in the Statement of financial activities on a teceivable basts. The balaace of income

received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevani funds on the Balance
sheel, Wheve income I received in advance of entitfement of recelpl, its recognition is deferred and included in
creditors as deferred income, Where entitlement occurs before income is raceived, the income is accrued.

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the irust are recognised at their open market value fn
the period in which they are recelvable as incoming resources, where the benefit to the academy can be reliably
megsured, An equivalent amount is included aa expenditure under the refevant heading in the Statement of
financial activities, except where the gift in kind was 4 fixed asset in which case the amount is inciuded in the

_appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the acadermy's

policies,

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount cun be velinbly
measured. Tneome fax recoverable in relation to donations received under Gift Ald or deeds of covenant is
recognised at the time of the donation.

Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis where there Is entitlement and certainty of receipt and the
amount cah be reffabiy measured. The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Academy
‘Frust are recognised at their open market value In the period in which they are receivable in Incoming resources,
where the benefit to the Academy Trust can be reliably messured. An equivalent amount is included as
expenditure under the relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activities, except where the gift in kind
was a fixed asset n which case the amount is included in the appropriate category and deprecialed over the
uselul ¢economic life in accordance with Academy Trust*s poficies,

Resources expended
All expenditures I recognised in the period in which a liability s incurred and has been classified under

headlngs that aggregate all costs related to that category. Where costs cannot be divectly attributed to partioular
headings they have been allocated on a basis consistent with the use of resources, with central staff cosis
allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.  Other
support costs are allecated based on the spread of statf costs.

Costs ol generating funds ave costs Incurred in attracting volwtary incorme, and those incurred in trading
activities that roise funds,

Charitable activities are costs incurred in the trust’s educational operations.
All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Charitable activities
These are costs incurred on the charity's educational cperations.

Governance costs
Governance cosls fnclude the costs atiributable o the trust's compliance with constitutional amd statutory

requirements, including audit, strategle management and trusts’ meetings and reimbursed expenses,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINULD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

ACCOQUNTING POLICIES - continued

Tangible fixed assets
Depreclation is provided gt the following annual tates In order fo write off each assst over Hs estimaled vsefil

iife.

Long leasehold - Straight linw over the [ease petlod
Fixtures and fittings - 15% on cost
Motor vehicles - 25% on cast
Computer eguipment -~ 33% on cost

All assets costing more that £1,000 are capitalised,

Where tangible fixed asseis have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheel at cost and depreciated over their expected usefu
ecenomic life. The related grants are credited to a resfricted fixed assel fund in the Statement of finacelal
activities and are carried forward in the Balance shest, Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economie iife of
the relnted asset on a basls consistent with the academy's depreclation policy,

A review for impafiment of a fixed asset is carcled out if events or changes in circumstances indicate thet the
cartying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.  Shorlfalls between the carrying value of fixed assels
and their recoverable amounis are recognised In the Statemeant of Financlal Activities.

On conversion to academy status the trast's academies have been granted the use of the site each academy
oceupies, The lease teym is for 125 years from the date of eonversion or until such time &s the sites are not used
for running each academy, at which point the land and buildings revert back to the lessor. As the risks and
rewards of ownership of the land and buildings of each academy have been transferred to the trust, they have
been included within voluntary income as part of the transfer [fom the local authority on conversion at their
gross value at conversion of £89,910,000. The land and buildings were valued by Lambert Smith Hampton
{members of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors) at fafr value,

Btocks )
Stocks are valued at the [ower of cost and net realisable value, after making due allowance for obsalete and slow

moving items.

Taxation

The Active Learning Trust Limifed is considered to pass the lests set out in Paragraph | Schedule 6 of the
Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tex purposes.
Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from tayation In respect of Income or capital gains received
within categorles covered by Chapter 3 Parl 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Seetion 256 of the Taxation
of Chargeable Gulos Act 1992, to the extent that such Income or gains are applied exclusively (o charltable
pUrpOSES,

Fund accounting .
Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the objects of

the trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Reslricled fixed asset fands are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the
Depariment of Education where the asset acquired ot created is held for a specifie purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds recelved and include grants from the Department for
Educatlon,

Investment Inceme, gains and losses ave allocated to the approprinte find,

Going concern

The trusices assess whether the use of going concern Is appropriste e, whether there are any material
uncertalnties related to events o conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern,  The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of one year from the date
of approval of the financial statements.
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ continued

Penslon costs and other post-retivement benefits

Rettrement beneflts to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers® Pension Scheme (*TPS")
and the Lucal Government Pension Scheme (' LGPS®), Thess are defined benefit schemes end the assets are held
separately from those of the academy trust

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated 5o as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees” working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and fhiture pensionable payroll. The contributions are defermined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quinquennial valuations using a prospective benefit method. As stated in note 29, the
TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and Liabilities of the scheme on a consisteat and reasonuble basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are paid each year,

The LGPS is a finded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the seademy trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair valie and labilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projecled unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on
a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the lisbilitics. The sctunsial valuations are

-obtained at least friennfally and are updated at each balance sheel date. The amounts charged fo operating

surplus are the current service costs and gains and losses on seftlements and curtallments. Thay are included as
part of staff costs, Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of Financlal Activities if the
benelits have vested, [f the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recogaised over the perlod untit
vesting ocours. The expocted return o ssets and the interest cost are shosvn as a net finance amount of other
firance costs or credits adjacent to interest, Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other gains
and losses,

Conversion to an academy
The conversion from state maintained schools into the trust invelved the transfer of identifiable assets and
liabilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration and has been secounted for under the

acquisition accounting methad.

The assets and liabiities transferred on conversion from Pakefield Primary School and Reydan Primary School
into the trust have been valued at their falr value, being 4 reasonable estimale of the current market value that
the trustees would expect to pay in an open market for an equivalent item. The fair value is in aceordance with
the accounting policies set out for academy. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate balance
sheet categories, with a corresponding amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed
under unrestricted Rands, resiricted general funds and restyicied Hxed asset funds.

The land and bulldings are held on a 123 vear lease g5 detalied in the fixed asset note to the financizl statements,

Leased assets
Rentals under operating leases are chargad on a straight line basts over the lease term.

VOLUNTARY INCOME
2015 2014
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds fands funds
£000 £1000 £9000 £000
Donations 28 “ 23 32
Gifts In kind - - - 5,972
28 - 28 6;024
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 201&

ACTIVITIES FOR GENERATING FUNDS

2015 2014
Unrestricted Restuicted Tolal Total
funds funila funds funds
2000 £1000 21004 £600
Fundraising events [45 . 145 136
Shop income 10 - 10 6
Hire of facilities 99 - 99 79
Catering ineome 463 ” 465 408
Music services income 29 - 29 29
Other iftcolming resourees 873 - B73 2046
Photocopying income 1 - 1 25
Other incoming resources 13 - 15 -
1,637 - 1.637 389
R ) A RS

INVESTMENT INCOME
2015 2014
Unrestricted Restrieted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£'000 £49060 £'000 £000
Deposit account lnterest i4 - 14 -

INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL
OPERATIONS

20158 2014

Unrestricted Rostricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

. £400 £900 L4000 £000

Sixth form partnership income 1 - I 21
Exams income 1 - 1 i
Educational consultancy 24 - 24 30
Grais - 25,897 25,897 16,376
Nuwrsery operalions 79 - 79 228
108 25,897 26,002 162656
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

INCOMING RESOURCES FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL
QPERATIONS - continuerd

An analysis of grants received is given below:

2015 2014
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds faads funds funds
£1000 £'000 £'000 £'000
DIE/EFA vevetive grant
General Annual Grant(GAG) - 23,329 23,329 14,816
Other DIE/EFA grants ' - 27 27 83
Start up grants - 148 148 387
- 23,504 23,504 15,286
DIE/EFA eapital grant
O{E Capitat Grant - 708 708 135
Other government grant
Local Authority grants - 1,685 1,683 953
- 25,807 25,897 16,376
RESOURCES EXPENDED
2015 2014
Noun-pay expenditure
Staff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
£'000 £000 £'800 £'000 £900
Costs of generating finds
Fundraising trading: cost af
goods sald atd other costs . “ 33 35 43
Charitable activities
Academles educational
operations
Diirect costs 17,188 - 2,377 19,565 12,981
Allocated support costs 3,399 2,593 1,615 7.507 5,136
20,587 2,593 4,327 27,507 18,160
Gavernancs eosts including
allocated support costs - - 523 525 340
20,387 2,593 4,852 28,032 18,500
Net resources are stated after charging/(crediting):
2015 2014
£000 £000
Auditors' remuneration 37 22
Operating leases:
- Plant and machinery 44 33
- Qther leases i3 13
Depreciation - owned assets 1,128 866
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 20158

FUNDRAISING TRADING: COST OF GOODS SOLD AND OTHER COSTS

s 2014

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds frnds funds

£1008 £1000 2'000 £900

Sports centre costs 35 - as 42
Lelings expenditure - - - ]
35 - 35 43

RESOURCES EXPENDED FROM CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES - ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL
OPERATIONS

2015 2044
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£'000 2000 £'000 £'000

Dilvect costs .
Teaching and educational support statf - 17,188 17,188 11,244
Technology coats 265 280 545 599
Educational supplies & 54 520 359
Exarination fees - 150 150 142
Staff development 154 - 154 79
Edveational consultancy 304 - 304 164
Other direct costs : o8 159 257 108
interest on pension scheme liabilities - 447 447 280
827 18,738 19,565 12,981

Allocated support costs

Support staff costs - 3,396 3,399 2,126
Depreciation . 1,128 1,128 863
Technelogy costs 49 - 49 54
Recruitment and support 49 - 49 13
Maintenance of premises and equipment 3i 842 873 361
Cleaning - 152 152 93
Rent and rates 6 17 123 138
Energy cosls - 294 284 208
Tnsurarnice - 23 23 163
Seeurity and fransport 93 H 104 78
Catering - 1,046 1,046 466
Office & adminisiration costs 320 125 443 386
Voluntary fund expenditure 114 - 114 135
Other support costs 108 - 108 46
770 7,137 7,907 5,136
1,597 25,875 27,472 18,117
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

GOVERNANCE COSTS

2015 2004

Unrestricted Restrieted . Total Total

funds funds fands funds

£'000 £1900 £1000 £'000

Accountancy 63 . 43 27

Aunditors' remuneration 37 - 37 22

Legal & protessional fees 366 . 366 274
HR & payroll services 59 - 39 17 !
523 " 523 340

e [——— e =

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS

Staff trustees only recelve remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking their roles zs staff, and
not in respect of their services as trusfees. Other trustees did not receive any payments, other than expenses,
frons the academy trust in respect of their role as trustees. The value of trustess’ remuncration was as follows:

Mr G Peile - (staff trustee)
Remuneration: £95,000 - £100,000 (2014: £85,000 - £90,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £10,000 - £15,000 (2014: £0 to £5,000)

Mep C Bush - (stafT trustee)

Remuneration: £50,000 - £55,000 (2014: £30,000 - £85,000)
Employer's pension contributions: £nil (2014: £ril)

Mrs M Toit - (staff frustes)

Remuneration; £43,000 - £30,000 (2014: £all - Mrs M Toft became 4 stafT trustee on | September 2014)
Employer's pension contribitions: £15,000 - £20,000 (2014: £0 to £5,000)

Trustees' expenses

During the yenr ended 31 Aupust 2013, expenses totalling £1,668 (2014 £1,967) were reimbursed to 6 trustees
{2013: 7 wustees), conslsting of fravel and subsistence cxpenses of £1,665 (2014: £1,508), and offles costs of
£nil (2014: £460).

Other related party transactions involving the frustess are set oul in note 20,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2Bi5

STAFF COSTS
2015 2014
£'000 £1000
Waoges and salarles 16,771 10,777
Social securify costs 973 719
Other pension eosts 2,783 1,843
20,529 [3,33¢9
Compensation payments 58 3i
20,587 13,370
E———— T

The average number of persots (including senfor management team) einployed by the academy trust durlag the
year expressed as fitll time equivalents was as follows:

2HE 2014
Teaching 242 246
Administeation & support 369 326
Munagement 45 17
656 589

The number of employees whose emoluments fell within the following bands was:
2015 2014
£60,001 - £70,000 8 8
£70,001 - £80,000 3 3
£80,001 - £90,000 - i
£30,001 « £100,060 P 2
£100,000 + - 1
13 15

Nine of the above employecs participated i the Teachers’ Pension Scheme. During the vear ended 31 Angust
2015 employers pension contributions for stafl earning over £60,000 amounted to £87,543 {2014 £96,594).
Three employees participated In the Local Government Penston Scheme employer’s pension contributions
amounted to £42,775 (2014: £10,518).

Staff severance payments

eluded {n staff’ restrucluring eosts are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments tetalling £58,0602
(2014: £31,3793). Individually the payments were: £907, £2,000, £2,140, £2,500, £4,864, £5,720, £6,503,
£7,368 and £25,000.

TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS! INSURANCE

The acadetny trust has opted into the Department of Educotion's risk protection mrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance whers UK government funds cover losses that arise, This scheme protects teustees snd
officers from claims arlsing from neglipent acts, errors or omissions oceurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000, It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers Indemnity element
trom the overall cost of the RPA scheme,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Long  Fistures and Mutor Computer
leasehold fittings vehicles eqnipment
£'000 £'000 £800 £000
COST
At 1 September 2014 83,319 834 - 702
Addittons 6,591 143 23 221
AL3T August 2015 89,610 7 25 923
DEPRECIATION :
At 1 September 2014 643 162 - 344
Charge tor year 698 1de 3 281
At 31 August 2015 1,341 308 3 625
NET BOOK VALUE
At31 August 2015 88,569 669 22 298
At 31 August 2014 82,676 672 - 358
STOCKS
2018
2000
Stocks 11

DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2015

£'000

Trade debtors 26
Other debtors -
VAT 159
Prepayments and acerued theome 418
603
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITER

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2018 2014
£'608 £'000
Trade ereditors 201 193
Social security ond other taxes 202 261
Other ereditors 320 343
Accruals and deferred income 762 381
1,575 1,178

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The following operating lease payments are comumltted to be paid within one year:

Gther operating leases

2015 2014
£'000 £'600

Expiring!
Within one year 27 2
Bebween one and five years 33 3
o0 10

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS

Nef Transférs

mevement in hetween
At 1/9/14 funds funds At 31/8/15
£'006 £000 E00 £000
Unrestricted funds
General fund 1418 (374) (243) 801
Restrieted funds
Restricted Fixed Asset Fund $3,700 3,613 243 39,558
Pension reserve (6,050} (1,230) - (7,280}
General Annual Grant {GAG) 511 1,711 - 2,332
Other DFE/EFA grants 8 {8) - -
Other governiment grants 33 40 “ 83
DIE/EFA eapital grants 142 379 - 521
Start Up Grant 337 (140} - 187
78,701 0,367 243 85,31t
TOTAL FINDS 80,119 5993 . 86,112

Transters between funds during the year sepresent the use of unrestricted funds for expenditure on pssets !
capitalised within the balance sheet,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST EAMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEVENTS - CONTINUED

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015
MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Net movement in funds, included in the sbove are as follows:

Incoming Resources
resourees expended
£'000 £1000
Unrestricted funds
General fund 1,784 {2,158
Restricted funds
Restricted Fized Asset Fund 6,743 {1,128)
Penslon reserve 280 {830}
General Anrmal Geant (GAQ) 23,333 (21,624)
Other DFE/BERA granty " (&
Other government grants 1,686 (1,646)
DHEMBRA capital granky 739 (350}
Stavt Up Geant 148 {288)
32,521 (25,874
TOTAL FUNDS 34,705 (28,032)
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Gains and
losses
£1600

(630)

Movement in
funds
£1000

(374)

5,615
(1,230)
[,711

(8)
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379
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 20135

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

Under the funding agresment with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not subject to a finsit on the
amaant of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2015,

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31 August 2015 were allocated as follows:

Total
£4000
Ths Neale-Wade Academy 1,597
Burrowmoor Academy ) 268
Westwood Academy 147
Gusford Primaty School _ 149
Chesterton Primary Schaol 26
Red Oak Primary Sehoo) 236
Grove Primary School 131
Sidegate Primary School 227
Hillside Primary School 43
Kingsfeld Primary School 253
Pakefield Primary School 94
Reydon Primary School 81
Islg of Ely Primuory School 5
Central services ' 537
3,834
Restricted fixed asset fund £9,558
Penston reserve _(1.280
Total 86,112
Analysis of aeademies by cost
Expenditure instred by cach academy during the year was as follows:
Teaching and Othet Other eosts
Fducational Support Educational {exeluding
Support 8taff  Staff Costs Supplics Depreciation) Total
£000 £000 £060 £600 £1000
The Neale-Wade
Academy 5218 270 187 1,514 7,889
Burrowmoaor Acpdemy 1,518 262 22 276 2,108
Westwood Acpademy 642 2 33 180 967
Gusford Primary School 1,774 302 40 367 2483
Chesterton Primary 226 29 12 136 403
School
Red Oal Primary 8chool 1,030 153 Iy 136 1,532
CGrove Primary School 9352 123 23 2318 1,338
Sidegate Primary School 1,843 218 55 473 2,589
Hillside Primary School 1,540 248 40 467 2,295
Kingsfield Primary School 1,197 143 32 339 1,731
Pakefield Primary School 872 136 16 174 1,198
Reydon Primary School 152 22 13 84 Eh3
Isle of Ely Primary School (84 5 14 71 274
Central Services - 644 ~ 382 1,226
17,188 3,399 520 5,237 26,344
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 201§

MOVEMENT IN FUNDS - continued

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS

The academy trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme
England and Wales (TPS) [or academic and related staffy and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for non-teaching staff. Bolh are deflned benefit schemes,

The LGPS s managed by Cambridgeshive Penalon Fund and Suffolk Pension Fund, The pensien costs are
assessed in accordance with the advice of Independent qualified actuaries. The latest actuarial valuation of the

TPS was 31 March 2012 and the LGPS 31 Mareh 2013,

Confributions payable as at 31 Angust 2015 to the TPS scheme amounted to £180,000 (2014: £167,000 and to
the LGPS sclieme amounted 1o £331,000 2014:£110,000) and are included within ereditors,

Page 38




19.

THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

PENSTON AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- egntinued

Teachers' pension scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS} is a statutory, contributory, defined beneflt scheme, governed by the
Tegchers” Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from | April 2014, by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations
2014, Membership 15 automalic for full-tIme teachers in academies and, from | January 2007, automatie for
teqchers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although they are able to opt
out, :

The TP is an unfonded scheme and members comribute on a “pay as you go* basia — these contributions along
with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirament and other pension benefits are paid by
pubtic funds provided by Parliament. '

Valuation of the Teachers’ Penslon Scheme

WNot fess than every four years the Government Actuary, ustng normal sgtuarial principles, conducts & formal
actuarial review of the TPS I accordance with the Public Service Pensions {Valuations and Ernployer Cost
Cap} Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury, The alm of the roview is to speetfy the level of future
contributions, Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of fukture costs, design
of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was earried out as at 31 March 2012
and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Emiployer Cost Cap) Directions 2014, The
vajuation report was published by the Department for Education on ¢ June 2014, The key elements of the
vituation and subsequent consultation are;

- employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a G.08% employer administraiion
charge (cuerently 14.1%)

- total scheme labilities (penslons currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service fo
the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the
netlonal Investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional past service deficit of
£14,900 million

- an employer cost cap of 10,9% of pensiorable pay will be applied 1o futurs valuations

- the assumed real rate of return Is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% In excess of earnings, The rate of real
earnings growth s assumed to be 2.75%. The assuimed nominal rate of return Is 5.06%

Durirg the year the employer contribution rate was 14.1%, The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer
rate of 164% from September 2003, which will be payable during the implementation perlod uniil the next
vatuation as at March 2016, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be
payable from 1 April 2019,

The employer pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £1,293,000 (2014: £552,000).
A copy of the vatuation report and supporting documentation is on the T'eachers' Pensions website,

Under the definltions set out in Financial Reporting Standard (FRS 17) Retirement Beneflts, the TP8 is o
wulti-employer pension secheme. The trust has accounted for ils contributions to the scheme as if it were 3
defined contibution scheme, The trust has set out above the information avallable on the seheme,

Loeal goverpment penston schense

The LGPS is a defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustec-administered funds, The total
contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2015 was £1,513,000 (2014; £853,000), of which employer's
contributions totalled £1,186,000 (2014: £667,000), The agreed contribution rate for fituve years are between
11.4% andt 22.6% for employer and between 5.5% and 12.5% for employses being variable based on pay. The
projected employer pension expense for the year ending 31 August 2015 amounts to £1,284,000 (2014;
£963,000).

The funds that the charitable company Is part of are the Cambridgeshire Pension Fund and the Sufiolk County
Couneil Pension Fund,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

Parliment hes agreed, at the requoest of the Secretary of State tor Educntion, to a guarantee that, in the event of
ackdemy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be mat by the Departiment

for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

The amounts recognised i the balance sheut are as tollows:

Present value of funded obligations
Fair vatue of plan assets

Defieit

Liability

The amounts recognrised In the statomont of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Interest cosat
Expeeted return

Actual return on plan agsets

Defined benefit pension

plans

2015 2004

£'000 £'000
{14,383} (10,493)

7,103 4443
{7,280} {6,050)
(7,280 (6,050)
(7,280) (6,050)

Defined henefit petsion

plans
2015 2014
£'000 £'600
1,570 797
447 286
(281) (157)

1,736 926
149 323

The actuarial galns and losses for the current year are recognised in the statement of financial activities. The
cumutative amount of actuarlal gelns and losses recognlsed in the statement of financlal sctivities since the

adopted of ERS 17 is & £692,000 loss (2014: £922,000 loss).

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obllgation are as follows:

Defined bepefil obligation

Current servics cost

Contributions by scheme particlpanty
Interest cost

Actuartal losses/(gains)

Bustness combinations
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plans

2015 2014

£1008 £'000
(10,493} {4,969}
{1,370) {(797)
{327 {186)
{447} (286)
37 (1,090)
(1,583} (3,165)
(14,381 £10,493)




THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

PENSION AND SIMILAR OBLIGATIONS
- continued

19,

Changes in the fair valug of scheme assels are as follows:

Defired benefit pension

JHans
2018 2014
£1000 £'000
Fair value of scheme assets 4,443 1,918
Cortributions by employer 1,186 667
Contributions by scheme partivipants 327 186
Expected return 281 157
Actuarial gains/{losses) (132) j1:1
Business combinations 998 1,347
7,103 4,443

The major categartes of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows!

Defined benefit penston plans

2015 2014
Equitles 0% 70.4%
Bonds [8.4% 1%
Property 9.7% 8.8%
Cash 1.9% 1.8%
Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as welghted averages)
2015 2014
Discount rate 3.8% 1L8%
Bspected return on soheme assels 3,8% 5.6%
Futura salary Increases 4,6% 4.5%
Future pension incregses 2.7% 2.7%

Brenkdown of the average expected retuen on assets by category Is as follows:

31 Augnst 31 August 2014

Period Ended 2018

Ys pat. % p.a.
Equities 3.8% 6.0%
Bonds 3.8% 34%
Property 3.8% 4.6%
Cash 3.8% 33%
Mortality

The eurrent mortalily assumptions are bagsed on the Fund's Vita Curves with lmproventents fn line with the CMI
2010 model assuming the current rate of improvements has peaked and will converge to a long term rate of
1.25% p.a.. The assumed Hie expectationy on retivement age 63 are:

Males Females
Current pensioners 22.4 years 24,4 years
Fulure pensioners® 243 years 26.9 years

# Figures assume members aged 43 as the last formal valuation date

Historic mortality

Life expeclancies for the prior perfod end are based on the Fund's VitaCurves, The allowance for future 1ife
expectancies are shown below, snd are the same for both the Cambridgeshire Penston Fund and the Suftolk
Pension Fund
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

19 PENSION AND SIMILAR QBLIGATIONS
- continued
Pariod Ended Prospective pensioners and pensioners
31 August 2014 Civll 2010 model pssunting that the curvent rate of
improvement has reached a peal and will

converge to a long tern rate of 1,25%

Please note that the mortatity assumptions used at the date the trust joined the Fund and the accouniing period
end are identical.

Commutation
An aliowanee I included for future retirements to elect fo take 25% of the masimum additional tax-free cash up
to HMRC limits for pre-April 2008 servics and 63% of the maximum tax-free cash for post-April 2008 service.

Amounts for the current and previous bwe periods are as follows:

2015 2014 2013
£4000 £000 £000
Defined benefit pension plans
Defined benefit obligation (14,383) (10,493) {4,969
Falr value of scheme assets 7,103 444 1918
Dalieit (7,280) (6,050) (3,051)
Experience adjustnients on scheme assels {132 168 (24)

20,  RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Owing to the nature of the scademy trust’s operations and the composition of the hoard of trustees being drawn
trom tocal public and private sector organisations, fransactions may take place with organisations in which the
trust has an interest, All transactions involving such organisations are condueted at am’s length and in
accordance with the trust’s financial regulations and novmol proourement procedures.

No related party transactlons took place in the perlod of aceount.
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

CENTRAL SERVICES

The aeademy trusthas provided the following central services fo its academles diring the year:
~ human resonrees

- financtal services

- legal services

- sohoot impravement services

The trust charges for these services on the following basis:

- a flat percentage of income at 4% of'all GAG-related income

- Isle of Ely Primavy School was opened on § September 2014 and was charged an additional amount for central
seevices due o the higher level of services and support belng provided, Including a centrally-managed budget,
together with planning and support In vespeet of a new school building profect.

The actual amounts charged during the yesr were as follows:

£1000

Burrowmoer Primary School 54
Chesterton Primary School 13
Fen Park Primary School 50
Gusford Academy 80
QGrove Primary School 43
Hillside Primary School 69
Tsle of Bly Primary School 80
Kingafeld Primary School 58
Neale-Wade Acadeny 270
Pakefield Primary School 30
Reydon Prisrary School 14
Sidegate Primary School 81
Westwood Acadenty 32

381

CONVERSION TO AN ACADEMY

On 1 January 2013, Pakefield Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academics Act 2010
and all the operations and assets and liabitlies were tansterred to The Active Learning Trust Lid from Suftfolk
County Couneil for £nil consideration.  The school has been renamed as Red Oak Pelmary Schiool,

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method, The assets and Habilitles transferred were
valued at thelr falr valug and recognised fn the balance sheet under the appropeiate headings with a
copresponcding net amount recognised as net incoming respurces in the Statement of Financtal Activitles as
voluntary incote.

The following table sets out the falr values of the Identifiable assets and labilities transferred and an analysis of
their recognition in the SOFA.
Restrloted Restrlcted

Unrestricted General Fixed Asset
Funds Funds TFundy Total
£008 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assels ‘
Fraehold/leasehold land & buildings 3,555 3,585
Other tangible fixed asgels 1t [13
Budget surplus on LA fundsg 154 154
LGPS pension deficit {548) (5483
Wet assets 154 (548) 3,666 3,272
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

The above net assets inchude £153,600 as cash transierred,

On 1 March 2015, Reydon Primary School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act 2010 and
alt the operations and assets and Habllities were transferred 1o The Active Learning Trust Ltd fram the Suffolk
County Couneil for Enil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for uslng the acquisition method, The assats and Habillties transterred ywere
valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a
eolresponding net amount recognised as nat incoming resources in the Stotement of Financial Activities as
voluntary income.

The tollowing table sels out the fair vatues of the ldentifiable assels and liabilities transferred and on analysis of
their recognition in the SOFA.,

Restricted Restricted

Unrestricted Cieneral Flsed Agset
Funds Funds Funds Total
£006 £000 £000 £16060
Tangible fixed assets
Freehold/leasehold land & bulldings 3,036 3,036
Other tanglble tixed assets 41 41
Budge! surplus on LA funds 12 12
LGPS penston defieit (62) {62)
Net assots i2 (62) 3,077 3,027

The above net assets include £12,031 &3 cash transfecred,
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2018

2015 2014
Unrestristed Restricted Total Total
funds funds fouds funds
£'060 £1900 £1000 £000
INCONMING RESOURCES
Yoluntary income
Duonations 23 - 28 52
Cifts in kind - - - 5,872
28 - 28 6,024
Yoluntary fncome - Transfor fram Local
Anthorlty on conversion _ - 6,743 6,743 28,089
Actlvities for gencrating funds
fundraising events 145 - 145 136
Shop incotne 10 - 10 6
Hire of facilitles 99 - 99 79
Catering income 463 - 465 408
Musie services Income 29 " 29 29
Other incoming resourees 873 . - 873 206
Photocopying Income 1 - ] 23
Other Incoming resources is - 15 -
1637 - 1,637 839
Investment income
Deposit account Interest 14 - 14 -
Incoming resourees from charvitablo actlvitles
Sixth form parinership income I - 1 21
Exams income 1 " 1 !
Educational cansuitancy 24 - 24 39
Cirants - 25897 25,897 16,376
Nurgery aperations 79 - 79 228
108 25,897 26,002 16,656
Other inconting vesonyces
Expected return on penslon soheins assets - 281 281 157
Total incoming resources 1,784 32,921 34,705 51,813
RESCOURCES EXPENDED
Fundraising trading: cost of goods sold and other costs
Sports centre costs i3 - 33 42
Lettings expenditure - - - 1
35 - 33 43

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

2015
Unrestrigied Restricted Total
funds funds funds
£000 £1440 £000
Charitable actlvities
Wages - 13,998 13,998
Social security - 8335 835
Pensions - 2,271 2277
Stalf severance costs - 58 38
Technology costs 268 280 545
Educational supplies 6 514 520
Exumination fees - 150 150
Staff development 154 - 154
Educational eonsuliancy 304 - 304
Other diveat costs 99 138 257
Interest on pension schene liabilitics - 447 447
828 18,737 19,5635
Goverianee eosts
Accountancy 63 - 63
Awdltors' remuneration kY, . 37
Legat & professional fees 366 - 356
HR & payrofl services 39 - 39
525 - 523
Support costs
Magagement
Wages - 319 519
Social security - 3 3
Penslons - 40 40
. 562 562
Finance
Wages - 1,503 1,503
Sootal seeurily - DA 23
Pensiong - 285 285
Bank interest & charges 6 - H
Other finance costs 7 - 7
13 1,883 1,896
Information techuology
Technology costs 44 - 49
Human resources
Recruitment and support 46 - 49
Security and transport 93 1! 104
142 11 153
Premises
Premises staff wages - 590 590
Boclal security - 17 17
Pensions - 143 145
Malntenance of premises and equipment 31 342 873
Cartled forward 31 {,594 1,625

This page does not form part of the statutory financial statements
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2014
Total
funds
£7000

9,044
616
1,553
31
399
359
142
79
164
108
286

12,981

27
22
274
.Y

340

184
1,04G

185

1,316
54

15
78

93

384
2
62

362

820




THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

DETAILED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2015

Unrestricted
funds
£1000

Premises
Brought forevard 31
Cleaning -
Rent and rates G
Energy costs -
Insurance .
Depn of long leasehold -
Depn of fixtures & {litings “
Motor vehicles -
Depn of computer equipment -
Other costs 93
132
Catering
Caterlng staft wages .
Soctal security -
Penslons -
Catering food/drink -
Catering equipment/repairs - -
Other support costs
Offlee & administration costs 296
Cther suppoit costs 24
Voluntary fund expendifore 114
,,,,, 434
Totai resouress expended 2,158
Net ineome before galns and lossey (374)
Realised recegnised galns and losses
Travnsfers of FRE 17 defielts from Local Authorities -
Net Income 374y

This page does not form part of the statufory financial statements
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Restricted
funds
£100

1,594
152
H7
294

23
6938
146

3
281

3,308
161

3

38

942
Lot

1,248

125

-
[E—

123

[R———————

23,874

re——

7,047

610)

2015
Total
funds
£1000

1,623

2014
Total
funds
£000
820
a3
138
208
165
509
118

238
36

2,323
146

{1,818)

31,497




THE ACTIVE LEARNING TRUST LIMITED

GLOSSARY OF TERMS USED WITHIN THE REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES

FORTHE YEAR ENBED 31 AUGUST 2015

Acronym Meaning

MQT Newly qualified teacher

LAL Leading Active Learning —Trust wide professional
develapment

SLDG Subject Leader Development Croup

PP/PPG Pupil Prentium Grant

SLT Senlor Leadership Tean .

RWM Reading Writlng Maths combined scoie

Grs Grammar Punctuation and Speliing

EYFS Early Years Foundation Stage (Nursery and
Reception)

SEF/SOP Self evaluation form / Sehool Development Man

T&L Teaching and Learning

SEN Special Educatinn Needs

KSI K82 K832 K84 Infants, Juniors, Year 7-9, Year 10-11

LES2 UKE2 Lower KS2 (Yeard und 4) Upper K82 (Year 5 and
Year 6)

HOS Head of School

TA Tenching Assisltant

NWA Neale Wade Academy

KPS Kingsfigld Primary

BPS Burrowmoor Primary _

GLD Good Level of Development as they leave the
Raception phase,

AHT /BT Assistant Headteacher / Depuly Headieacher

MFL Maoderr Forsign Language

SA-Cinel E/M 5 Grade A-C GC8Eg including Maths and English

o0 Chair of Governors

PLs Phase Leaders (Leading a Key stage e.g, Year 1 and
2 Phase Leader)

LGB Lacal Governing Body

Ve Vice Principal

Bridge Project Cross Trust Arts Project working towards Arts Mark

with an outside apency.

This page does not form part of the stalutory financial statements
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